
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
WINDHAM, CT 

 
MINUTES 

 
March 6, 2008 
 
The Windham Zoning Board of Appeals held its meeting on March 6, 2008 in Town Hall.  
Chairman Robert Coutu called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  Members present were 
Jerry Hart, Al Beaulieu, Bob Coutu, Susan Fiegel-Rapp, Jose Cruz and Rene Harris.          
Town Planner James Finger was also present.   Voting members are Jose Cruz, Susan Fiegel-
Rapp, Bob Coutu, Al Beaulieu and Jerry Hart. 
 
I)  Public Hearings 
 

1) Alan Phillips, 14 Russ Drive, Willimantic – Variance from setback restriction to 
build a larger garage.   

 
Planner Finger’s staff report dated February 29, 2008 explained that this is an 
application for a variance from the setback restrictions in order to build a larger 
garage.  Currently, the owner has a 1-car garage, and would like to have a 2-car garage 
in its place.  This larger building is subject to different setback rules of 20 feet from 
the side, and 30 feet from the street line.  The property is small for the district, said 
Finger.  The proposed building will be 8 ¾ feet from the side, and roughly 20 feet 
from the street line, he said.  Pending the outcome of the hearing, Town staff has no 
objections to the variance. 
 
Alan Phillips, 14 Russ Drive, Willimantic, CT said he is seeking a variance from the 
side setback to build a 20’ X 24’garage.  Planner Finger explained there is a 20’ 
setback for the size of the building on the side and a 30’ setback from the property line 
in the front.  He said it is a non-conforming property.  It is a small lot.  We don’t know 
exactly where the property line is in the front, but the existing building is pretty close 
to where he wants to build the new building, he said. There is about 4 feet on either 
side of the existing 1-car garage, which he wants to expand to a 2-car garage.  Planner 
Finger said he made an error in reporting that the property is surrounded on 3 sides by 
a street.  This property is small, but it doesn’t have 3 streets surrounding it, he added.  
Chairman Coutu asked the applicant if the variance he is requesting is 8’ 8”.  Planner 
Finger said it is bigger than that.  It is 12 feet on the side and 15 to 20 feet off the 
front.  We don’t exactly know where the property line, but he measured from the edge 
of the pavement and he needs a variance on both sides as he indicates on his site plan.  
Board member Al Beaulieu asked if the 19 feet will be from the edge of the road.  Mr. 
Phillips said the 19 feet is measured from the house to the edge of the road.  Chairman 
Coutu said it looks like there is quite a bit of room when you stand back.  It doesn’t 
look like the proposed garage will infringe on your neighbors, he added.   
 

 1



As there was no one in the audience to speak for or against the request, nor were there 
any further questions by Board members, the public hearing was closed.  Motion by 
Al Beaulieu, seconded by Susan Fiegel-Rapp.  The vote to close the public hearing 
was unanimous. 
 
Al Beaulieu made a motion to grant Alan T. Phillips, 14 Russ Drive, Willimantic a 
variance from the front and side setback restrictions as requested and Susan Fiegel-
Rapp seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.    

  
2) Sylvie M. Grenier, 73 Wesley Circle, Willimantic Camp Meeting Association 

property – variance to re-build dilapidated cottage in accordance with Sections 
3.10.14 & 3.10.13 slightly larger, and in a different location. 

 
Planner Finger’s staff report indicated that the existing seasonal cottage is in serious 
disrepair, and is dangerous.  The prospective owner wants to tear the building down, 
and rebuild it in a slightly different location on the site in the Campground to provide 
additional space to the next nearest home.   
 
Sylvie Grenier said her intention is tear down the house at 73 Wesley Circle.  The 
house is very dilapidated and has a huge blue tarp over the entire house.  She said the 
house she intends to build will be the same footprint that is there now.  The house will 
be 19 feet wide and 39 feet long. It will be 26’ 2” high at the tallest point in the back.  
She said she notified neighbors of the public hearing and submitted signed copies of 
the notice.  She said one neighbor is in Florida at the present time.  The property that 
would be greatly affected by the proposed house would be the Robbins property.  I am 
requesting to move the new building a little bit over because it is really close to their 
house (Robbins house) on one side.  Their house is straight and the house on 73 
Wesley Circle is at an angle.  She said she spoke to the Robbins’ and they didn’t have 
a problem with moving the proposed house a little.   
 
Board member Al Beaulieu asked, if you straighten out the house will you be 
encroaching on the Barrows house, which is #8 Wesley Circle.  She said it would not 
encroach on their property because there is a footpath behind it.  I would be moving 
the back end of the house by 4 feet.  It would still be the same footprint, but it would 
be moved so that the house is in a straight position opposed to being at an angle as it 
presently is.   
 
Chairman Coutu said it appears to be about 6 feet at the closest point between the two 
houses.  Ms Grenier said that is correct.  If you open a window you can practically 
touch.  She said she would be moving the house further away.  She said the house she 
is looking to put up will a Victorian looking house.   
 
Chairman Coutu asked if the Camp Meeting Association has rules as to the height and 
size of the replacement house.  Ms. Grenier said she spoke with Mr. Freeman, 
Executive Committee president, and he indicated that there are no specific regulations.  
She said she told Mr. Freeman that the new house will have a Victorian outside 

 2



exterior so that it will blend in with at least half of the houses there.  Half of the 
houses in the Campground have a Victorian look, while the other half have been 
altered and they look to be either Garrison or Capes.  Chairman Coutu asked if the 
new porch will be as close to the road as it is now.  Ms. Grenier indicated that it 
would.   
 
A general discussion ensued.  Planner Finger said this house was a seasonal cottage 
and anything that is rebuilt needs to fit in with the area.  He said the area is growing, 
and recently a number of people have moved in and have converted these seasonal 
cottages.  The new house could have a significant impact because it shares a septic 
system with three other buildings, he added.  This will be the fourth building on the 
same septic system.  We don’t know the condition of the system and we don’t know 
the capacity.  The concern is how many people will be putting water into it.   
 
Ms. Grenier said she has two daughters and one will be leaving for college.  Board 
member Susan Fiegel-Rapp asked if the plan is to build the house higher.  Mrs. 
Grenier said it would stay at the same height.  She said she doesn’t foresee any need to 
have it higher than 26.2 feet.  
 
Planner Finger said it is not up to the board to design or locate this house.  It really is 
the applicant’s job, as well as the community of the Campground to agree and to 
determine what is appropriate to build there.  It seems like there is space and it may be 
a good idea to move it, but a completed plan should be presented to the board for its 
review and approval.   The board cannot approve something unless they know the 
dimensions, what it looks like, the height, and the floor plan.    Ms. Grenier she was 
hoping to have her plan approved before she spends money on house plans.  She said 
the plans will be very costly and doesn’t want to incur that expense if the board is not 
receptive to her request.   
 
Planner Finger voiced another concern.  He said there are two very tall pine trees close 
to this house.  Somebody should look at taking those trees down because they could 
dangerous.    Ms. Grenier said she could take down the tree by the door.  The other 
tree, which is further away from the house, belongs to the Camp Association.   
 
Board member Al Beaulieu asked how could the board vote on this application 
without proper illustrations showing heights, measurements etc.  It is hard to approve 
this without having a completed plot plan.  It is hard to look at a drawing made by 
hand, and point out where you want to place the house.  Is the Campground 
Association going to allow you to move the house, he asked?  If they are in 
agreement, I would like to have a letter from them stating that it is okay, said 
Beaulieu.  The Camp Association should grant you permission to move the house 
before we vote on the application.    
Ms Grenier said she is not sure which committee would have to write the letter.  
Planner Finger said the property owner needs to present a plot plan showing what she 
intends to do. Board member Al Beaulieu said he would like to see an overview of the 
plan identifying exactly where the house will be, how far off the road it will be etc.  

 3



He said he would not be comfortable voting on this at this time.  We also need to 
know whether the septic system will accommodate the new house, he said.  
 
Planner Finger addressed the applicant and said he thought there were people in the 
Campground who could help her with this.  There are people in the Campground who 
have knowledge and experience and could help lay it out so that it will fit with the 
landscape, the topography and the community.  We also need to know how it ties into 
the septic system and if the State is going to approve it because you have 4 different 
dwellings connecting to the septic tank, he added.  
 
Audience comments: 1) Anita Murphy, 57 Haven Avenue, said she has serious 
concerns that whatever is built there not change the integrity of the area.  She said she 
is disappointed with what has been done there recently.  She said the other two houses 
that were built changed the area because they were built quite high.  She said we need 
to maintain who we are.  Pointing to a picture of the proposed house, she said I have 
no objections to something like this.  I just want to make sure that the integrity and 
history of the Campground is maintained.    2) Jerry Iazzetta said the applicant needs 
to submit the existing floor plan and the proposed floor plan.  This should include 
elevations, he said.  The applicant has not indicated how many bedrooms she plans to 
have.  The board definitely needs more information.  My concern is that she doesn’t 
go any higher than 26’.  He suggested that the board continue the public hearing so 
that the applicant can provide the necessary information.  She should also ask the 
Executive Committee of the Campground to provide a report to the board.  3) 
Stephanie Iazzetta said she has concerns with the condition of the septic system and 
whether it is adequate to accommodate the new house.   
 
Planner Finger said there needs to be a better line if communication with the Camp 
Meeting Association.   Chairman Coutu said the applicant needs to coordinate her 
efforts with the Camp Meeting Association as to what she can do with that property.  
She also needs to provide the dimensions of the proposed house. 
 
The board was in agreement to continue the public hearing. 

 
3) Willimantic Autoworks, LLC, 130 Natchaug Street, Willimantic – variance from 

Sections 35.3 and 35.5 to divide out existing non-conforming residence (setback 
variance also) in C-2 Zone where dwellings are prohibited from a Commercial 
property along with easement for rear portion of residential property used for garage. 
 
Planner Finger’s report explained that the applicant, James Gillespie, is seeking a 
variance from the provisions of Section 35.3 on prohibited uses (dwellings established 
as non-conforming use prior to the adoption of the Zoning Regulations, and Section 
35.5 setbacks to allow him to divide out the existing residence from the remaining 
commercial portion of the property, and to maintain an easement for use of the rear 
portion of the residential property as a parking lot for the commercial use of the 
property. 
 

 4



Mr. Gillespie, co-owner of the Willimantic Autoworks and the property at 130 
Natchaug Street, Willimantic said his partner Chip Funk is planning to retire and he 
will have to buy him out.  In that process it became clear that this property has three 
parcels on it.  The parcel for the house in front comes very close to the front of the 
garage where we actually park cars, said Gillespie.  I would like to move that line up a 
bit so that the parking lot is not part of the house parcel.  Board member Al Beaulieu 
said by moving it up you will be closer to the house?  Yes, said Gillespie.  Chairman 
Coutu asked what is the distance between the house and the property line.  Mr. 
Gillespie said it is approximately 12 feet.  He added that he spoke to the DMV, and 
they said that he would not need an A-2 Survey. 
 
A discussion ensued.  Chairman Coutu said the area of the house lot would be 36 
square feet.   He will be moving the line up 60 feet from the garage.  This would leave 
him 12 feet off the back of the house.   Planner Finger asked if it is possible to leave 
the house lot substantially as it is and take an easement off the back for the 
commercial use.  Mr. Gillespie said he would prefer not to.  Planner Finger said he 
was trying to figure out the least variance necessary.  He said he wasn’t aware that the 
lot was configured that way.  If you are cutting out or changing the dimension of the 
lot then you probably need to have an easement to that part so you can get to the 
middle lot, said Finger.    
 
As there was no one in the audience to speak for or against the request the public 
hearing was closed.  Motion by Al Beaulieu, seconded by Susan Fiegel-Rapp.  
Unanimous vote to close the public hearing. 
 
Al Beaulieu made a motion to grant the Willimantic Autoworks, LLC, 130 Natchaug 
Street, Willimantic a variance from Section 35.3 and Section 35.5. to divide out an 
existing non-conforming residence (setback variance also) in a C-2 zone where 
dwellings are prohibited from a Commercial property along with a reduction of the 
rear portion of the residential property which is used for the garage.  In addition, to 
approve the modification of the property (in the event it has to go to the DMV) and the 
reduction of lot area to approximately 3500 feet.  Sue Fiegel-Rapp seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried unanimously.   

 
     Routine Business 

 
The minutes of November 1, 2007 and December 6, 2007 were approved.  Motion by 
Al Beaulieu and seconded by Susan Fiegel-Rapp.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The board voted to defer action on the January minutes until the next meeting. 

 
As there was no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:37 P.M.  Motion by Al 
Beaulieu and seconded by Susan Fiegel-Rapp.  The motion carried.  
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
       Lillian Murray, Clerk   

 5


